
                                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

  
 

  
  
  

 

AGENDA  THURSDAY, November 5, 2020  7:00PM 
          By ZOOM 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
 

B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 10/6/2020 and Executive Session 10/27/2020  
 
 

D. REPORTS:   
1)  Planning & Zoning Report 
2)  City Manager’s Report 
3)  City Attorney’s Report  
4)  Council Remarks 
5)  Mayor’s Report 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will be 
allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be limited to 
40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please submit those to 
the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an 
opportunity for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner. 
 
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
        

G. NEW BUSINESS 
G1) Award DeBelle St/Atlanta Area School for the Deaf Stormwater Work bid to the lowest bidder – Leach 
Landscaping 
G2) Approve Extending the Sunset Clause of the Clean Indoor Air Act to Certain Grandfathered Businesses 
G3) Approve Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Continued COVID-19 Testing 
G4) Approve Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Child Care Centers in Clarkston 
G5)  Amend Appendix A of the City Code Of Ordinances, Article VII– Zoning District Standards – to allow 
self-service laundry, A/K/A Laundromats, as a Conditional Use Within the NC-1, NC-2 and Industrial 
Districts 
G6)  Review and vote on Settlement Agreement with Railroad Outdoor LLC to allow for the Issuance of a 
Sign Permit to install One (1) Billboard just inside the West Side of I-285 along Church St.     

 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT:  

Jamie Carroll       Laura Hopkins                                      
Ahmed Hassan  Debra Johnson 
                     
 Robin I. Gomez– City Manager 

Awet Eyasu – Vice-Mayor 



 

MINUTES 
CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, October 6, 2020 
Via Zoom 
Officials Present by Teleconference 
Mayor:  Awet Eyasu 
Council: Jamie Carroll, Ahmed Hassan, 
Laura Hopkins, Debra Johnson 
City Manager: Robin I. Gomez  
City Clerk: Tracy Ashby  
City Attorney: Stephen Quinn 

 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
Awet Ahmed Jamie Laura Debra 
 
C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 9/1/2020  
 
Ahmed Hassan made a motion to approve the minutes for the 9/1/2020 Council Meeting.  Debra Johnson 
seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). 
 

D. REPORTS:   
1)  Planning & Zoning Report 
Shawanna Qawiy provided an update of ongoing projects and she discussed that a public hearing will be 
held at the October 20th Planning & Zoning Meeting, pertaining a proposed amendment to the Clarkston 
Zoning Ordinance to allow laundromats as a conditional use within the NC-1 Low Density Neighborhood 
Commercial,  NC-2 Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial and I- Light Industrial zoning districts  
laundromat.  
 

2)  City Manager’s Report 
Mr. Gomez explained that the City has implemented a waiting room for the zoom meetings and it will be 
easier if everyone attending identifies themselves for the zoom meetings.  He provided a budget to actual 
report through September 30, 2020. He provided the status of City and community operations during 
continued Covid issues. 
 
 Meeting interrupted 7:15pm. Meeting recording closed and then restarted.  
 
Mr. Gomez continued his report on City projects status.  He discussed the status on the public water and 
costs associated with complying with state water drinking act, water quality testing and drilling. The City 
will pursue having a professional firm to come and advise but it is likely that water for irrigation only may 
be the best option.  
 

 Assistant Chief Hess provided an update on the Police department.  
 

3)  City Attorney’s Report  
No report 
 
4) Council Remarks 
Laura Hopkins asked for Mr. Quinn to discuss current Court requirements. Mr. Quinn stated courts can 
proceed but a failure to appear cannot be filed against person who do not want to attend.  Mr. Gomez 
clarified that the City is holding limited courts and only for those that wish to appear.  All social distancing 



 

protocols are being implemented.  
 
5)  Mayor’s Report 
The Vice Mayor provided details of attended meetings during the previous month on annexation and the 
census. He discussed his meeting with the DeKalb Elections and the City’s work to have an absentee ballot 
box installed at the City Hall building. Mr. Gomez confirmed the ballot box has been installed and will be 
activated on 10-8-2020. He reminded residents of the rent, mortgage and utility assistance resources 
available for those in need. 
 
E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each 
attendee will be allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public 
comment period will be limited to 40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment 
contains a series of questions, please submit those to the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by 
the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an opportunity for public comment; however, the 
business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner. 
 

Warren Hadlock discussed preference for accessible water at 40 Oaks and requested a greater police 
presence at Friendship Forest in the evenings and he supports the improvements at Friendship Forest agenda 
item.  
 Dean Moore suggested having water testing complete before pursuing wells. 
 
Brian Medford supported annexation and encouraged council to wait until after the election to appoint DDA 
member.  He recommended denial of the billboard items, the City does not need them and they do not help 
the citizens.  
 
Robin Chanin commented on item G4 for park signage, she supports the spirit and for hiring a professional 
she suggested including someone with diversity knowledge to allow access for language translation.   
 
Susan Hood supported denying the billboard appeal and she recommended holding on the DDA appointment 
until after the election.  
 
Chris Busing spoke on concerns with the tree ordinance.  
 
Vice Mayor closed public comments. 
 
Speaker Glory Kilanko spoke on domestic violence prevention program and asked for a moment of silence 
for Debra Johnson’s sister.  
 
Jan Christensen spoke on the importance of domestic violence programs.  
  
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
       None 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 
G1)  Amend Chapter 13 of the City Code, Concerning Parks and Recreation, to Clarify Restrictions on 
Playing Baseball or Softball at Milam Park 
Laura Hopkins detailed the need to limit players to age twelve and under as the field is undersized and close 
to the both the  pool and the dog park.  She discussed language to clarify the restriction and the Vice Mayor 
confirmed that the changes are in the proposed text.  

 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to amend Chapter 13 of the City Code to clarify the language by adding For 
the protection of park visitors on the playground, dog park and swimming pool,” ahead of section (a) and to 
remove the phrase  “throws a baseball or softball on that field,”  as part of the definition. Debra Johnson 
seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). 



 

 
G2)  Appoint a Council member to the Vacant Seat on DDA. 

 Awet detailed that at the December 3, 2019 Council Meeting, YT Bell was appointed to serve a two year 
term on the Clarkston Development Authority. On August 12, 2020, YT Bell qualified as a candidate for 
the Clarkston Mayor Special Election and vacated her Council Seat. Council Members Hopkins and Carroll 
have expressed an interest to serve. The City Attorney and Mr. Gomez confirmed the current DDA has a 
quorum.  
 
 Ahmed made a motion to nominate Laura Hopkins to the vacant DDA seat.  Debra Johnson  seconded the 
motion. Laura Hopkins gave thanks for the nomination.   A vote was called and the motion carried (3- Yes: 
Hassan, Johnson, Eyasu, 0- No, 2- Abstain: Carroll, Hopkins). 

 
 G3) Approve Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest 
 Council discussion on planting a pollinator garden at Friendship Forest and the City Manager stated under 

the Council direction, that Public Works can purchase and install the plants.   
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to direct the City Manager to go forward with the Plantings in the open field 
and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest. Awet Eyasu seconded the motion. A vote was called and the 
motion carried (5, 0). 
 

 G4)  Approve All park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist 
interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as 
watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park management. 
 
Laura Hopkins stated the purpose and need to have park signage be written and coordinated by a park 
management professional, naturalist interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental 
studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park management. Discussion 
on having the signs created by an interpretive professional in English and then am option, potentially, for 
QR codes for visitors to access other languages. The City Manager stated this item is currently for the 
completion of Friendship Forest.  
 
Laura made a motion to direct the City Manager to use a consultant that is a park interpretive specialist to 
assess and cost the signage for parks going forward, whose specialty is in environmental studies, natural 
sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park management. Ahmed Hassan   seconded 
the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). 
 
G5)  Amend ordinance for land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to increase undisturbed 
buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft 
Awet Eyasu stated purpose for the agenda item and that this will bring the City in alignment with DeKalb 
County’s buffer requirements.  
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to amend Chapter 22 of the City Code concerning Stormwater Management, 
specifically article ii concerning stream buffer protection, to increase the required stream buffer from fifty 
to seventy-five feet. Debra Johnson  seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). 
 
G6)  Approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of 
Clarkston 
Debra Johnson asked the Council to approve the resolution to declare October as domestic violence 
awareness month in the City of Clarkston. She would like for the City to host an annual event to bring 



 

awareness to this issue. Ms. Kilanko stated she looked forward to working with the city on this important 
human right.  
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness 
Month in the City of Clarkston.   Laura Hopkins seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion 
carried (5, 0) 
 
G7)  Approve Alcohol Package Store License application Lulu’s Package 
City Manager stated this application is based on an ownership change for Lulus Package store at 3900 E 
Ponce de Leon Ave for an alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt/Liquor beverages for retail 
package. To date: all of the required inspections have been performed and the required background check 
has been passed. Code Compliance has reviewed the application and has measured the location and found it 
does meet minimum distances as defined by the Code.  The representative spoke and stated all required 
documentation had been submitted.  The Vice Mayor reminded of the grandfathered transfer timeframes for 
the business.  
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to approve Alcohol Package Store License application Lulu’s Package, at 
3900 E Ponce de Leon Ave.   Jamie Carroll seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried 
(4-Yes: Carroll, Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu, 0- No, 1- Abstain: Hassan). 
 
G8)  Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard 
Mitigation Plan    
The City Manager detailed DeKalb County has requested that in preparation for the next update in 2022, the 
City of Clarkston had not submitted an Adopting Resolution for the plan. The resolution is necessary for the 
City to continue to remain eligible for disaster funds. The plan essentially serves as the comprehensive 
emergency guide to all types of natural disasters resulting from floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, ice, snow, 
earthquakes, droughts, etc. It is vitally important that the county and all cities have an adequate plan to best 
prepare and respond to all natural hazards and potential emergencies. The City was an active participant 
with the County and other cities in the 2016 plan adoption and will similarly participate for the 2022 update. 
A link to the full plan was included with the packet. 
 
Ahmed Hassan made a motion to adopt the Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb 
County 2016 Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion. A vote was called 
and the motion carried (5, 0). 
 
G9)  Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ 
FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3611 Church Street 
Mr. Gomez stated the City received a request from Railroad Outdoor LLC for sign permit to install a 
billboard on the property located at 3611 Church Street.  City staff reviewed the application and denied the 
application for the following reasons:  
1. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels  
2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards. 
This billboard would be within both of those sections of the code. The applicant subsequently requested an 
appeal of denial and that is what the Council has before them.  
 
Representative Adam Webb, Attorney, advised also on the meeting were Franklin Lemond of Webb, Klase 
and Lemond and Mike Fitzgerald/ Kelly Shaw-Owners of Railroad Outdoor LLC).  Mr. Webb requested 
that in order to streamline tonight's hearing, if the Council would join agenda items G9 and G10, to 



 

consider the two non-railroad sites together (since they raise identical issues) and then to consider items 
G11 and G12, the two railroad sites, once again in a joint manner? 

 
The Vice Mayor stated they could be presented combined, but the council would vote on each agenda item 
separately.  
 
Owner Mike Fitzgerald spoke on background of the company and the civic service that their billboards 
provide and possibility for the sign to be available for notices from the City. He felt the signs were in 
keeping with the City code.  
 
Adam Webb stated his view that the billboards are permitted in the city, meeting the requirements of the 
city’s billboard ordinance.  He referred the Council to his written appeal information but acknowledged that 
they provided appeal information late today and the Council had not had ample time to review the 
materials.  He then went on to summarize the points made in his written materials.  
 
Mr. Quinn advised the Council that the applicant had not addressed the fact that the proposed signs are too 
close to each other and to residences.   
 
Mr. Gomez advised the Council that the applicants never made any request to discuss the applications prior 
to submitting. Also the applicant has not addressed the restriction distance between billboards and the 
distance to residential properties. The Staff recommend that the Council make the decision to deny the 
appeal.  
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to affirm the city manager’s decision to deny the application based on the 
Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f) and  the 
Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   Laura 
Hopkins seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). Carroll Hassan Hopkins 
Johnson Eyasu unanimous 
 
 
G10) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ 
FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.       

 The Vice Mayor stated the purpose of the item.  

Mr. Gomez stated this item is similar to G9, the applicant submitted an application to install a billboard at 
3874 E Ponce de Leon Avenue.  Denied application based on Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet 
of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f) and 2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of 
other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e). 

Adam Webb referred to the same arguments made on item G9. 

Vice Mayor Eyasu stated his position that all four signs would detract from the City’s aesthetic and be 
harmful to nearby residents. 

Awet Eyasu made a motion to affirm the City Manager and deny the application on Billboard signs 
they are 1. prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f) and 2. 
Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   
Debra Johnson  seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). (Carroll, Hassan 
Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu) 
 



 

G11) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ 
FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just 
outside (East) of I-285.     
The City Manager stated the third application is to install another billboard located at the southerly portion 
of Church St, just outside (East) of I-285.    The application was denied based on: 
1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5- 
41,3). 
2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4). 
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 
15.5-63,b). The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible 

  zoning designations. 
4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f). 
5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e). 
He requested the Council deny the appeal. 
 
The Vice Mayor gave the applicant an opportunity to present on the last two items. 
 
Adam Webb referred to his written submission and the reasons stated in support of items G9 and G10.  Mr. 
Webb also stated that the City had not zoned the railroad right of way and therefore the signs must be 
allowed.  
 
Stephen Quinn stated the City has an ordinance that states signs not allowed in railroad right-of-way.   
 
The Vice Mayor commented that these signs are bad for residents  
Awet Eyasu made a motion affirm the City Manager and deny the appeal for the reasons:  
1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5- 

41,3). 
2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4). 
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 
15.5-63,b). The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning 

designations. 
4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f). 
5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e  
 
Jamie Carroll seconded the motion. Council discussion: Jamie Carroll stated the denial should not be taken 
as personal, but that they are not permitted by the city code. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). 
(Carroll, Hassan Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu) 
 
G12) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ 
FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just 
inside (West) of I-285.     
City manager reported the application Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of 
Church St, just inside (West) of I-285.    Application denied based on: 
1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-41,3). 
2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4). 
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 15.5-
63,b). 
The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations. 
4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f). 



 

5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e). 
 
Adam Webb stated the same arguments as the previous on item. 
 
Awet Eyasu stated he strongly believe the sign would be harmful to residential properties and made a 
motion to deny the appeal based on  1 . Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility 
easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-41,3). 
2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4). 
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 15.5-
63,b). 
The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations. 
4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f). 
5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   
Laura Hopkins  seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). (Carroll, Hassan 
Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu) 
 

 
H. ADJOURNMENT:  
Laura Hopkins made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  A vote was 
called and the motion carried (5, 0). 



MINUTES 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday October 27, 2020 -7:00pm 

Officials Present 

Vice-Mayor:  Awet Eyasu 

Council:  Jamie Carroll, Ahmed Hassan, Laura Hopkins, Debra 

Johnson 

City Manager:  Robin I. Gomez  

City Clerk:  Tracy Ashby  

City Attorney:  Stephen Quinn 

 

The Vice Mayor called the Work Session to order at 7:00pm.  

Work Session  

F. EXECUTIVE SESSION- Legal Issue 

Jamie Carroll made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a Legal Issue.  Awet Eyasu seconded 

the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).   

Executive Session to discuss a Legal Issue. 

Awet Eyasu made a motion to close the executive session and to go into the work session.  Jamie Carroll 

seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).   

Meeting adjourned. 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Award DeBelle St/Atlanta Area School for the Deaf Stormwater Work bid to the lowest bidder – Leach 
Landscaping 

PURPOSE:  

Award the DeBelle St/Atlanta Area School for the Deaf Stormwater Improvement Project to the low bid presented 
by Leach Landscaping in the amount of $419,474.00. 

NEED/IMPACT: 

At the May 2020 presentation to Clarkston City council, staff outlined the history of flooding and property damage 
to the Atlanta Area School of the Deaf and DeBelle Street roadway as a consequence of stormwater runoff from 
upstream properties. Staff presented to Council the remedy to resolve these impacts to public and private property 
and the associated party’s financial contribution to the stormwater infrastructure repairs. 

Subsequent to the Council presentation, staff prepared a scope of work, construction plans, and bid package 
documents to procure the services of a contractor. The bid package and plans were advertised to-bid for 30 days 
and the bid opening occurred on October 16th, 2020.  The city received 4 bids. All bidders were deemed qualified to 
submit a bid.  

The bid result:: 
 Contractor Bid Amount 

The Dickerson Group, Inc $1,089,581.05 
Multiplex, LLC $971,555.00 
JHC Corporation $842,998.00 
Leach Landscaping,  Inc $419,474.00 

The engineers estimate for the work was $361,000, up from an original $300,000. 

The funding for this project is a partnership between the State of Georgia Department of Education, the City of 
Clarkson, and Majestic Indian Creek, LLC. The funding participation amounts are as follows: 

State DOE - $150,000 
Majestic Indian Creek LLC - $40,000 
City of Clarkston (Stormwater Enterprise Fund) - $229,474 

The project is estimated to begin in Mid-November with a duration of 150 calendar days with liquidated damages 
assessed at $1,000 per calendar day, exclusive of quantifiable weather events.   

ITEM NO: G1 

ACTION TYPE: 

Approve- Award  
Low Bid 

HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  2 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   







CITY OF CLARKSTON 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES MEETING 

DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Approve Extending the Sunset Clause of the Clean Indoor Air Act to Certain Grandfathered Businesses 

PURPOSE:   

Discuss an ordinance to amend Chapter 10, Article VII of the City Code of Ordinances titled Clean Indoor Air to 
extend the grandfathering for certain qualified establishments, to modify the hours during which smoking is 
allowed, and to require the grandfathered establishments to post a sign outside each entrance warning visitors that 
smoking is allowed inside.  

NEED/IMPACT: 
On August 4, 2016, the Clarkston City Council adopted Ordinance No. 398, enacting “Clean Indoor Air” regulations 
with the main purposes to: (1) protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking in public places and 
places of employment; and to: (2) guarantee the right of nonsmokers to breathe smoke free air, and to: (3) 
recognize that the need to breathe smoke free air shall have priority over the desire to smoke.  The Ordinance 
among other things included a provision allowing for a Temporary Grandfathering of Certain Establishments until 
December 31, 2018, specifically, qualified adult entertainment establishments and business licensed for the retail 
sale of tobacco, other plant product used for smoking, accessories used for smoking, Electronic Smoking Devices, or 
substances intended to be inhaled through electronic smoking devices.  On April 3, 2018, the Clarkston City Council 
adopted Ordinance 421 that extended the Temporary Grandfathering of Certain Establishments until December 31, 
2020, and added a new section titled Hookah Licenses for Restaurants allowing for hookah smoking in restaurants 
that obtained a license no later than July 2, 2018.   

While the original 2016 Ordinance and the 2018 revision have been effective at protecting the health and well-being 
of Clarkston residents, employees, and visitors, the City Council has concerns that the Ordinance may impose a 
hardship on City businesses that compete with nearby businesses located in unincorporated DeKalb County that are 
not subject to strict no-smoking regulations (like Clarkston’s). 

The proposed ordinance would permanently extend the grandfathering provisions at the following locations: 
A. “Qualified adult entertainment establishments” recognized pursuant to City Code § 2.5-31;

and

B. Restaurants holding a “hookah permit” pursuant to City Code § 10-79.

Additionally, restaurants that obtained a hookah permit prior to July 2, 2018, may continue to obtain an 
annual hookah smoking permit by December 31 by completing an application and playing a regulatory 
permit fee of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).   The restaurants must also comply with various other 

ITEM NO: G2 
CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

ACTION TYPE: 

  
Ordinance HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  25 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



regulations including that no other type of smoking is allowed and no person under the age of 18 years old is 
permitted inside the establishment at any time.   
 
Enclosed are Ordinances 398 and 421, as well as the proposed current revision.  
 



   

 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE VII OF THE CITY CODE, ENTITLED 

“CLEAN INDOOR AIR,” TO EXTEND GRANDFATHERING FOR 

CERTAIN QUALIFIED ESTABLISHMENTS; TO MODIFY THE 

HOURS DURING WHICH SMOKING IS ALLOWED; AND TO 

REQUIRE GRANDFATHERED ESTABLISHMENTS  TO POST A 

SIGN OUTSIDE EACH ENTRANCE WARNING VISITORS THAT 

SMOKING IS ALLOWED INSIDE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 398, enacting “Clean 

Indoor Air” regulations, on August 4, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Clean Indoor Air Ordinance has been effective at 

protecting the health and well-being of Clarkston residents, employees and 

visitors but the City Council became concerned that it may have a negative 

impact on certain businesses operating within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, strict no-smoking regulations within the City may impose a 

hardship on City businesses that compete with nearby businesses located in 

unincorporated DeKalb County that are not subject to strict no-smoking 

regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to mitigate hardships on local 

businesses while encouraging DeKalb County to impose strict no-smoking 

regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that it cannot bind future Councils 

but the current Council hereby announces its intent to terminate 

grandfathering and hookah permits provided for in this ordinance when 

DeKalb County enacts a strict no-smoking ordinance, upon giving reasonable 

advance notice to such businesses. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Clarkston City Council as 

follows: 

 

SECTION 1. City Code § 10-69, entitled “Temporary Grandfathering of 

Certain Establishments” is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



 

 

“Sec. 10-69.  Grandfathering of Certain Establishments 

 

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, smoking 

shall be permitted in the following places:  

 

A. “Qualified adult entertainment establishments” 

recognized pursuant to City Code § 2.5-31; and 

 

B. Restaurants holding a “hookah permit” pursuant to 

City Code § 10-79. 

 

(2) In establishments where smoking is permitted, the 

establishment must post a sign at each public entrance, 

measuring at least four square feet, that states:  “WARNING:  

SMOKING IS PERMITTED IN THIS ESTABLISHMENT 

AFTER 6 P.M.  SMOKING AND SECOND HAND SMOKE 

CAUSE CANCER, LUNG DISEASE, OTHER ILLNESS AND 

DEATH.” 

 

SECTION 2. City Code § 10-79, entitled “Hookah License for 

Restaurants” is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

“Sec. 10-79.  Hookah Permit for Restaurants.   

 

A. Certain restaurants within the City have been issued a permit 

that allows limited smoking of hookah within the restaurant.  

Such permits were only issued prior to July 2, 2018.  No new 

permits will be issued. 

 

B. A hookah permit issued by the city manager pursuant to this 

section grants an annual privilege to the permittee.  Such 

permits shall expire on December 31 of each year.  Such 

permits may be renewed but the permittee shall have no right 

to nor expectation of renewal for any subsequent year. 

 

C. An annual regulatory permit fee of One Thousand 

($1,000.00) Dollars shall be paid to the City prior to issuance 

of a hookah permit.  Such fee is intended to compensate the 



   

 

City for the cost of enforcing this ordinance.  The annual fee 

will not be pro-rated. 

 

D. The following regulations will be strictly enforced at 

restaurants holding a hookah permit: 

 

1.) No person under the age of 18 years old is permitted inside 

the establishment at any time. 

 

2.) Smoking of anything other than hookah is prohibited at all 

times. 

  

3.) After 6:00 p.m., hookah is permitted; all other smoking 

remains prohibited. 

 

4.) No person under the age of 21 years old is permitted inside 

the establishment after 6:00 p.m. 

 

E. If the owner or operator of a restaurant holding a hookah 

permit is convicted of any violation of this Article in 

Municipal Court, the hookah permit for that establishment 

shall be automatically revoked.  No refund will be issued for 

the permit fee. 

 

SECTION 3. If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this 

ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be 

held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of the Article 

which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to 

this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its 

approval by the City Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

SO ORDAINED, this ___ day of ____________, 2020. 

 

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By_________________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

CITY COUNCIL, 

CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

 

 

_________________________ 

Mayor 

         (SEAL) 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

__Stephen G. Quinn___________ 

Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO. _398__ _ 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON TO AMEND CHAPTER 10 OF THE 
CODE TO ADD NEW ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "CLEAN INDOOR AIR" TO 

PROIDBIT SMOKING IN DESIGNATED WORKPLACES AND PUBLIC PLACES 

WHEREAS, the 2006 U.S. Surgeon General's Report, The Health Consequences of 
Involuntary Exposure to Tobacco Smoke, has concluded that (1) secondhand smoke exposure 
causes disease and premature death in children and adults who do not smoke; (2) children exposed 
to secondhand smoke are at an increased risk for sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS), acute 
respiratory problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks, and that smoking by parents causes 
respiratory symptoms and slows lung growth in their children; (3) exposure of adults to 
secondhand smoke has immediate adverse effects on the cardiovascular system and causes 
coronary heart disease and lung cancer; (4) there is no risk-free level of exposure to secondhand 
smoke; (5) establishing smokefree workplaces is the only effective way to ensure that secondhand 
smoke exposure does not occur in the workplace, because ventilation and other air cleaning 
technologies cannot completely control for exposure of nonsmokers to secondhand smoke; and (6) 
evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smokefree policies and laws do not have an 

adverse economic impact on the hospitality industry. 1 According to the 2010 U.S. Surgeon 
General's Report, How Tobacco Smoke Causes Disease, even occasional exposure to secondhand 
smoke is harmful and low levels of exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke lead to a rapid and 
sharp increase in dysfunction and inflammation of the lining of the blood vessels, which are 
implicated in heart attacks and stroke.2 According to the 2014 U.S. Surgeon General's Report, The 
Health Consequences of Smoking-SO Years of Progress, secondhand smoke exposure causes 
stroke in nonsmokers. The report also found that since the 1964 Surgeon General's Report on 

Smoking and Health, 2.5 million nonsmokers have died from diseases caused by tobacco smoke3
; 

and 

WHEREAS, numerous studies have found that tobacco smoke is a major contributor to 
indoor air pollution, and that breathing secondhand smoke (also known as environmental tobacco 
smoke) is a cause of disease in healthy nonsmokers, including heart disease, stroke, respiratory 
disease, and lung cancer. The National Cancer Institute determined in 1999 that secondhand smoke 
is responsible for the early deaths of approximately 53,000 Americans annually4; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Health Service's National Toxicology Program (NTP) has listed 

secondhand smoke as a known carcinogen5
; and 

WHEREAS, based on a finding by the California Environmental Protection Agency in 
2005, the California Air Resources Board has determined that secondhand smoke is a toxic air 
contaminant, finding that exposure to secondhand smoke has serious health effects, including low 
birth-weight babies; sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS); increased respiratory infections in 
children; asthma in children and adults; lung cancer, sinus cancer, and breast cancer in younger, 

premenopausal women; heart disease; and death6
; and 









Section 2. If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Article or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the 
other provisions of this Article which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Article are declared to be severable. 

Section 3. This Article shall be effective thirty (30) days from and after the date of its 
adoption. 

ADOPTED this 

ATTEST: 

s,i�4lO 
Tracy Ashby,ty Clerk � 

(SEAL) 

Approved as to Fonn: 

Stepen G. Quinn, City Attorney

, 2016. 

CITY COUNCIL OF 
?ZryEO:A 

Mayor Ted T�17

5 

�J�G-�Ot\-_
....:::.-=
=,,,,...__?

.:...........;;
-z, - ,6

























ORDINANCE NO. '-{ ~ I

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON TO AMEND CHAPTER 10,
ARTICLE VII OF THE CITY CODE, ENTITLED "CLEAN INDOOR AIR"; TO 
EXTEND TEMPORARY GRANDFATHERING FOR CERTAIN 
ESTABLISHMENTS; AND TO ALLOW QUALIFIED RESTAURANTS TO
OBTAIN A LICENSE THAT WOULD PERMIT HOOKAH SMOKING
PURSUANT TO DEFINED REGULATIONS.

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 398, enacting "Clean Indoor Air" 
regulations, on August 4, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City's Clean Indoor Air Ordinance has been effective at protecting the 
health and well-being of Clarkston residents, employees and visitors but may have a 
negative impact on certain businesses operating within the City; and

WHEREAS, strict no-smoking regulations within the City may impose a hardship on City 
businesses that compete with nearby businesses located in unincorporated DeKalb County 
that are not subject to strict no-smoking regulations; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to mitigate hardships on local businesses while 
encouraging DeKalb County to impose strict no-smoking regulations; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to terminate grandfathering and hookah 
permits provided for in this ordinance when DeKalb County enacts a strict no-smoking 
ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Clarkston City Council as follows:

SECTION 1. City Code § 10-69, entitled "Temporary Grandfathering of Certain 
Establishments" is hereby amended such that the date December 31, 2018, in the first
sentence is replaced with the date December 31, 2020. Section 10-69 shall remain
unchanged in all respects other than the changed date in the first sentence.

SECTION 2. New Code§ 10-79 is hereby adopted, to read as follows:

"Sec. 10-79. Hookah License for Restaurants.

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, restaurants licensed
to operate within the City may apply for and the city manager may issue 
a permit that will allow limited smoking ofhookah within the restaurant.
Such application must be submitted no later than July 2, 2018. No new
license under this section will be issued unless the application is 
received by such date.



B. A hookah permit issued by the city manager pursuant to this section 
grants an annual privilege to the permittee. Such permits shall expire 
on December 31 of each year. Such permits may be renewed but the 
permittee shall have no right to nor expectation of renewal for any 
subsequent year.

C. An annual regulatory permit fee of One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars 
shall be paid to the City prior to issuance of a hookah permit. Such fee 
is intended to compensate the City for the cost of enforcing this 
ordinance. The annual fee will be pro-rated for year 2018 but will not 
be pro-rated during any subsequent year.

D. The following regulations will be strictly enforced at restaurants holding 
a hookah license:

I.) No person under the age of 18 years old is permitted inside the
establishment at any time.

2.) No smoking of any type is permitted before 9:00 p.m.

3.) After 9:00 p.m., only smoking of hookah is permitted; all other 
smoking remains prohibited.

4.) No person under the age of 21 years old is permitted inside the 
establishment after 9:00 p.m.

E. If the owner or operator of a restaurant holding a hookah permit is 
convicted of any violation of   this Article in Municipal Court, the hookah 
permit for that establishment shall be automatically revoked. No refund 
will be issued for the permit fee.

SECTION 3. If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance
or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that 
invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of the Article which can be given 
effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions 
of this Article are declared to be severable.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its approval by the City 
Council.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS



ADOPTED, this J:> day of Aocc'I , 2018.
I > 

ATTEST:

Approved as to f'onn:

~&&.. :- !f..3-1?
sie;   en G. Quinn, City Attorney





                                                   CITY OF CLARKSTON                                        Page:        1
                                        OCCUPATIONAL TAX/BUSINESS LICENSE MASTER                            Date: 09/29/20
                                                  Executed By: levans                                       Time: 16:34:23

Business Name                            Street Address                        Supplemental Address           Work Phone  
-------------                            --------------                        --------------------           ----------  

ADDIS HOOKAH TOBACCO SUPPLY INC          3924 E PONCE DE LEON                  STE B                          404-944-0352
ATL EXOTICS                              1353 BROCKETT RD                      STE A                          678-521-8329
DUBAI TOBACCO SHOP                       1353 Brockett Rd                      STE H                          678-887-8600

NUMBER OF BUSINESSES:         3



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Increase the Provision limiting the Temporary Rental, Mortgage, and Utilities’ Payment Assistance of 50% 

of One (1) Month’s Payment to 100% of the month’s payment.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
 
Continue to provide temporary rental, mortgage, and utility payment assistance by changing the provision of 
limiting applicants to 50% of one (1) month’s assistance for up to 3 months to allowing up to 100% of one month’s 
payment.  
 
NEED/IMPACT: 
At the June meeting, the Council approved a $100,000 temporary rental payment assistance program funded from 
the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  At the August Council meeting and the August 20 Special Call Meeting, the 
Council clarified the funds purpose on the distribution of the 3 months’ provision and allocated additional funding 
for both rental and mortgage assistance up to $450,000, as well as up to $100,000 for utility assistance from the 
City’s share of CARES Act funds (received on Sept 3, from DeKalb County).    
 
To date the City has made 455 rental payments totaling $273,373.50 (average of $600.50 per payment); 5 mortgage 
assistance payments totaling $1,159.04; and 7 utility payments totaling $346.24.  We are anticipating very little if 
any reduction in folks applying for the temporary rental and utility payment assistance through December 20, 2020.   
 
The below lists the City of Clarkston’s estimated $1,433,288 CARES Act Fund expenditures through Dec 20, 2020.   
   

Translation Services  $    1,000 
  Legal Services   $  17,500 
  Tech Equip/Services  $    5,000 
  Police Equipment  $  12,000 
  Outdoor Equipment  $    7,500 
  Clearing/PPE Equip/Supp $  15,000 
  Food – 1st responders  $    1,000 
  Payroll (5% hazard pay)  $  50,000 
  Rental/Mortgage Housing $450,000 
  Payroll – other   $260,000 
  Workforce Development $100,000 
  Utility Payment Assistance $100,000 
  Contingency, for above categ $399,288  
      $1,433,288 

ITEM NO: E5 

ACTION TYPE: 
Discussion  
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Council Worksession 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

PURPOSE:   

Approve providing CARES Act Funds for COVID-19 Testing. 

NEED/IMPACT: 
The City received a request for CARES Act funding to assist two (2) COVID-19 Testing locations: 

(1) Ethne Health – personnel funding for a part-time nurse from Dec-May 2021 $19,000 

(2) IRC/CORE – testing and contract tracing for 2 months at various Clarkston
locations (apartment complexes) and personnel support related to Supportive
Services $159,850 

$  88,391 
Details for each proposal are included below. 

The below lists the City of Clarkston’s estimated $1,433,288 CARES Act Fund expenditures through Dec 20, 2020.  

Translation Services $    1,000 
Legal Services $  17,500 
Tech Equip/Services $    5,000 
Police Equipment $  12,000 
Outdoor Equipment $    7,500 
Cleaning/PPE Equip/Supp $  15,000 
Food – 1st responders $    1,000 
Payroll (5% hazard pay) $  50,000 
Rental/Mortgage Housing $450,000 
Payroll – other $260,000 
Workforce Development $100,000 
Utility Payment Assistance $100,000 
Contingency, for above categ $399,288 

$1,433,288 

ITEM NO: G3 

ACTION TYPE: 
Approve HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting       MEETING DATE: November 5 2020

SUBJECT:  Discuss Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Continued COVID-19 Testing.  

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:   YES   NO 
Pages: 3 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



 

 

October 19, 2020 

Dear Mr. Gomez, 

Ethne Health is a nonprofit primary care clinic located in the heart of Clarkston, GA. We serve uninsured and 
insured patients, and are the only such clinic in Clarkston that remained open with regular hours throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Since March 16th, we have also been offering COVID-19 testing at our clinic, as well as 
doing a free testing drive in partnership with the City of Clarkston on April 3rd and 4th. On May 11th we began a 
partnership with the Dekalb County Board of Health (DCBOH) to provide free testing at our clinic. We continue to 
offer free testing in partnership with the DCBOH to this day, and as of October 15th we have performed more than 
2400 COVID-19 tests. 

Through our partnership, the DCBOH provides the testing kits, lab services, and iPads integrated with their labs, and 
we provide everything else, including the tent and location, doctors and nurses to perform the nasopharyngeal swab 
and advise patients before and after their tests, and staff and volunteers to schedule, register, and intake patients. 

To aid us in providing this service Ethne has been blessed with many faithful volunteers, most notably a nurse who 
has volunteered full-time since May, performing the majority of our swabs as well as supporting all other areas 
necessary to make this testing possible. Unfortunately, this nurse volunteer who has been such a crucial support will 
be unavailable starting in December. Demand for testing is not expected to decrease in the near future, however, and 
Ethne intends to continue partnering with the DCBOH to provide this service to the community. 

In order to continue providing free testing, we would propose the hiring of a nurse (or other equally qualified 
medical professional) dedicated to supporting our COVID-19 testing. This professional would perform the necessary 
swabs, as well as calling patients before and after their testing and liaising with our doctors, staff, and volunteers to 
ensure that the process continues smoothly. This position would require 25 hours of work each week, and if we pay 
this professional $27/hr for a 6 month contract the total expected cost would be approximately $19,000, including 
employer-paid taxes. If the City of Clarkston could partner with us by providing the necessary funds to hire this 
professional, that would ensure smooth continuation of our free testing services. We are happy to continue to 
provide the other support of doctors, staff, volunteers, and materials. 

In the unlikely event that Ethne discontinues offering free testing over the course of the six months of this nurse's 
employment (Projected to be December 2020 to May 2021), we would return any unused funds to the city of 
Clarkston. 

Thank you for your consideration of our proposal, and for all you do to serve the people of Clarkston 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Robert W. Contino, MD, MPH 
Internal Medicine and Pediatrics  
CEO/Physician/Co-Founder Ethne Health 
 



Costs
Hourly Wage / 

Salary
FTE / Quantity 1 month 2 months

Program 

Associates
$15.00 16 $41,600.00 $83,200.00 

Resource 

Coordinators
$17.50 2 $6,066.67 $12,133.34 

Site Manager $20.00 1 $3,466.67 $6,933.34 

Assistant Site 

Manager
$17.50 1 $3,033.33 $6,066.66 

Program Manager $25.00 1 $4,333.33 $8,666.66 

Recurring Costs $2,500.00 1 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

Communications 

Campaign
  $10,000.00 $20,000.00 

$69,500.00 $139,000.00 

$10,425.00 $20,850.00 

$79,925.00 $159,850.00 CORE Total

CORE's Proposed Testing & Contact Tracing Budget

Workforce Totals

15% Overhead



IRC's Proposed Budget for Supportive Services

Direct Assistance

Cost per COVID+ 

community 

member

# of community 

members served  

per month 1 month 2 months

Emergency Rental Assistance -$                        84 -$                    -$                      

Emergency Utilities -$                        -$                    -$                      

Groceries 200$                       16,800.00$        33,600.00$          

Total - Direct Assistance 16,800.00$       33,600.00$          

Personnel Costs

Hours per client 

served

Total Hours per 

month

Hourly Rate of 

Pay + Fringe

Personnel cost 

for 1 month

Case Workers 4 336 24.69$               8,295.84$            

Case Aides 3 252 20.44$               5,150.88$            

Employment Specialist 2 168 23.44$               3,937.92$            

Project Coordinator 70 27.24$               1,906.80$            

Communications Coordinator 60 30.66$               1,839.60$            

Total - Personnel Costs 21,131.04$          

Program Supplies 500.00$                

Summary 1 month 2 months

Total Programmatic Costs (Direct 

Assistance + Personnel + 

Supplies) 38,431$                 76,862.08$            

Overhead @ 15% 5,765$                    11,529$                 

Total 44,196$              88,391$              



Personnel cost 

for 2 months

16,591.68$        

10,301.76$        

7,875.84$           

3,813.60$           

3,679.20$           

42,262.08$        

1,000.00$          



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

PURPOSE:   

Approve providing CARES Act Funds for two (2) Child Care Centers in Clarkston.  . 

NEED/IMPACT: 
The City received a request for CARES Act funding to assist two (2) child care centers in Clarkston, Early Learning 
Scholars and Clarkston First Baptist Academy, with the purchase of: 

(1) supplies and equipment (cleaning, lap tops, printing, etc) $46,840 
(2) scholarships and support for families with various services and/or equipment $40,750 
(3) Program technical assistance, data collection, and reporting $6,000 

Specific details of each category/area requested are listed below

A total funding request of $93,590 

The below lists the City of Clarkston’s estimated $1,433,288 CARES Act Fund expenditures through Dec 20, 2020.  

Translation Services $    1,000 
Legal Services $  17,500 
Tech Equip/Services $    5,000 
Police Equipment $  12,000 
Outdoor Equipment $    7,500 
Cleaning/PPE Equip/Supp $  15,000 
Food – 1st responders $    1,000 
Payroll (5% hazard pay) $  50,000 
Rental/Mortgage Housing $450,000 
Payroll – other $260,000 
Workforce Development $100,000 
Utility Payment Assistance $100,000 
Contingency, for above categ $399,288 

$1,433,288 

ITEM NO: G4 

ACTION TYPE: 
Approve HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting       MEETING DATE: November 5, 2020

SUBJECT:  Approve Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Child Care Centers in 

Clarkston 
DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages: 3 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



1 
 

Child Care Matters:  Building a City of Clarkston Child Care Infrastructure in the 
Time of COVID-19 

A Proposal for COVID-19 City of Clarkston Funding 

 October 14, 2020      DRAFT 

Introduction:  COVID-19 child care issues impact both child care programs and families 

Child care centers in Clarkston are navigating the new normal as they are beginning to re-open.  These 
centers provide employment for teachers and child care for essential workers and others who need child 
care to make ends meet.   

Center owners are anxious about their school’s survival.  They are “small businesses” that have been 
greatly impacted by COVID-19.  The community is worried that they may not survive and thus decrease 
the number of child care slots available to families. 

Centers have difficulties paying for the increased amount and costs of cleaning supplies, masks, gloves, 
plastic shields, and other PPE items as well as educational supplies necessary to ensure social distancing, 
a safe environment, and a quality program. 

Centers are having trouble finding teachers.  Not all teachers want to work, especially those who are 
more susceptible to the virus.  In addition, there is difficulty recruiting new teachers who may not yet 
have background criminal records checks or the right credentials. 

Centers are trying to recruit families, many of whom who are skeptical of in- person learning during 
COVID-19.  Others do not have the funds to pay for child care nor know how to navigate the scholarships 
and resources that are even available to them. 

The centers are doing their best to comply with state and local guidelines and to create a safe place for 
teachers, infants, toddlers, pre-schoolers, school-age children, and their families, while trying to provide 
a quality as well as fun learning experience for children so that they don’t suffer from learning loss. 

These centers provide a valuable resource for Clarkston families who are essential workers or trying to 
make ends meet by taking part-time jobs or take classes to further their employment options. 

Families who live in Clarkston are often confused about which child care centers are open, how many 
slots they may have, and the resources (or lack thereof) for paying for child care.   

One mom, who has 3 pre-school children, would have to pay approximately $150 per child if there were 
no scholarships available.  Some centers have scholarships to fit her needs (she only works a few hours 
each week and is in a training program), but may not have slots for all of her children.  Others may have 
slots but she may be confused about child care subsidy programs and how to apply. Many applications 
are on line and families do not have digital devices and may not know how to complete applications. 

 Language is often a barrier as is the confusing “red tape” that often accompanies trying to find, choose, 
and enroll children in child care. 

 



2 
 

Purpose, Program, and Proposed Budget 

To respond to the immediate child care needs resulting from COVID-19, CDF Action and partners request 
funding for the following:  

(a)   Clarkston Child Care Centers:  financial and other supports for two child care centers located in 
Clarkston, Georgia:  Early Learning Scholars on Clarkston Industrial Way, and Clarkston First Baptist 
Academy, located on Church Street,  so that they can keep their door opens --- and  pay for the added 
expenses related to COVID-19, including cleaning supplies, masks, gloves, consumable items, teacher 
retention,  educational supplies and equipment.  

(b)   Clarkston families:  financial and individualized /language support for Clarkston families who are 
essential workers and others who need child care in order to work or receive training. as they try to 
navigate how to find, choose, and pay for child care.  

 (c)   Systems:  technical assistance to Clarkston child care centers, and supports to those agencies and 
groups seeking to help families choose and afford child care; project invoicing; collection of data through 
the development of report forms and by interviewing center staff, teachers, and families.   This data will 
be used by CDF Action and the City of Clarkston Early Learning Task Force to help plan for child care - 
during and post-COVID – and to make recommendations to the City of Clarkston, to funders, and to our 
community partners in order to create an equitable system of early care and learning for each and every 
Clarkston child. 

Budget Narrative 

Partners request funding for (a) supplies and supports for two Clarkston Child Care Centers; (b) child 
care scholarships and supports for families, especially those who are essential workers; (c) technical 
assistance, data collection, and reporting. 

(a) Supplies and supports for 2 Clarkston Child Care Centers:  Early Learning Scholars on Clarkston 
Industrial Way and Clarkston First Baptist Academy, Church Street.  Sub-total:  $46,000 
 
1. Cleaning Supplies, including hand sanitizer and disinfectants, masks, gloves, booties, plastic 

shields and other protective equipment, paper goods:  $8,000 
2.  Educational supplies and equipment (including back packs filled with educational and 

COVID-19 supplies for families not attending the centers because of COVID-19:  $8,200 
3. Teacher stipends ($200 at the end of the program x 27 teachers): $5,400 
4. Lap Tops for teachers who do not have them and who are conducting virtual programs by 

zoom – 8 computers at $400 per computer: $3,200 
5. Scholarships for 20 children at $100 per week x 10 weeks: criteria to be developed, 

including must be a Clarkston resident; the $100 is an average and will be dependent on 
situation of the families, using a sliding fee scale: $20,000 

6. Printing, including distribution of COVID-19 and Children booklet and other materials 
produced by the City of Clarkston COVID-19 Committee and the GSU Prevention Research 
Center (PRC): $2,000 
                                                                                                     
 



3 
 

(b)  Child care scholarships and supports for Clarkston families:  sub-total:  $40,750 – Sub-contract 
with the Amani Women’s Center 
1. Scholarships for 20 children whose families are not eligible for or not receiving CAPS or 

other scholarships and/or who are in the process of applying, $100.00 per week (average) 
per child x 10 weeks x 20 children.  These scholarships are for families not enrolled in one of 
the project’s two Clarkston child care centers.  A list of 25 centers in a one-mile radius of 
Clarkston has been compiled by the Clarkston Early Learning Task Force.  Family scholarship 
criteria will be developed by the partners, including the family must be a resident of City of 
Clarkston or work in the City of Clarkston: $20,000 

2. Child Care Family Navigator, contract; 15 hours per week x 10 weeks x $30 an hour: $4,500   
3. Interpreters /consultant, contracts:  $55 an hour x 150 hours:  $8,250 
4. Lap tops for families:  5 laptops at $400 each:  $2,000 
5. Program and Administrative Costs, Amani Women’s Resource Center, program oversight 

and record keeping:  $6,000 
 

(c) Project management, technical assistance, and workshops:  Sub-Total $6,000 – CDF Action 
1. Fiscal agent, record keeping and submission of invoices and reports to the City. 
2. MOU’s with the Amani Women’s Center, Early Learning Scholars, and Clarkston First Baptist 

Academy, outlining deliverables, time table, and payments. 
3. Child Care Information Zoom workshop for agencies and groups serving Clarkston families 

with young children, to include information on child care availability, scholarships and other 
resources, with time for questions and answers and feedback 

4. On-line child care fact sheets  
5. Training and support, Amani Child Care Family Navigator 
6. Interviews with center staff, selected families, and Amani Resource Center, to evaluate the 

project and help inform the work of the Clarkston Early Learning Task Force. 
7. Final project report. 

Budget Summary: 

(a) Supplies and Supports for Clarkston Child Care Centers:                      46,840 
(b) Child Care Scholarships and Supports for Clarkston Families:              40,750  
(c) Program technical assistance, data collection, and reporting:               6,000 

                                                                                                          Total Request: $93,590 

Partners  

• CDF Action, fiscal agent and project manager, Roberta Malavenda, Executive Director 
• Amani Women’s Center, Doris Mukangu, Executive Director 
• Early Learning Scholars, Inc., Tara Armstrong, Executive Director 
• Clarkston First Baptist Academy, Angela Moore, Community Relations Director, Clarkston First 

Baptist Church 

Contact:  Roberta Malavenda, roberta@cdfaction.org; PO Box 529, Clarkston, GA 30021; 404 317-2734   

 

mailto:roberta@cdfaction.org


CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

                                          MEETING DATE: November 5, 2020 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: To amend the Clarkston Zoning Ordinance to allow laundromats as a conditional use within 
the NC-1 Low Density Neighborhood Commercial,  NC-2 Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial 
and I- Light Industrial zoning districts.  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
To adopt a proposed text amendment to amend the Text of Appendix A of the Clarkston Zoning 
Ordinance to permit laundromats under the conditional use permit criteria. 
 
NEED/ IMPACT:  
The goal of the text amendment is to permit a laundromat under the conditional use permit criteria 
within the NC-1, NC-2, and I, zoning districts if approved. 
 
 The NC-1 zoning district is intended to provide suitable areas for limited retail and personal services 
serving residents in the immediate vicinity. Uses located within this district supply those goods and 
services which require frequent purchasing with a minimum of customer travel. The scope at which 
properties are developed within the NC-1 district should reflect their relatively small market areas. 
This zoning district may serve as a step down from more intense commercial uses to residential uses.  

The NC-2 zoning district is intended to provide suitable areas for the provision of retail and personal 
services oriented towards those neighborhoods making up the adjacent community. The regulations 
which apply within this district are designed to encourage the formation of compatible and 
economically healthy business and service uses which benefit from close proximity to each other. 
  
The I zoning district is intended to provide suitable areas for business distribution/service facilities, 
transportation terminals and manufacturing/assembly processes which do not emit noise, vibration, 
smoke, gas, fumes, or odors from an enclosed building. These districts should have access to arterial 
roadways and utilities and discourage uses which are incompatible with light manufacturing. When 
located on the perimeter of an industrial node, I-zoned properties should provide for uses that are 
low in intensity and scale to ensure compatibility with adjacent properties. 

   

ACTION TYPE: 
Ordinance HEARING TYPE:  

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: 
Planning and Development/City Council 

ATTACHMENT: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Councilman Jaime Carroll 
P & D Director Shawanna Qawiy 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   

ITEM NO: G5 



RECOMMENDATION(S):  
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT STAFF: 
An extensive review of all conditional use permitting (in each zoning district) should be conducted 
during the zoning rewrite process. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD: October 20, 2020 
The Planning and Zoning Board recommended DENIAL of the request to amend the Clarkston Zoning 
Ordinance to allow laundromats as a conditional use within the NC-1 Low Density Neighborhood 
Commercial, NC-2 Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial and I- Light Industrial zoning districts 
and to incorporate this amendment to be reviewed during the full zoning rewrite.  
 

      



    
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
MEETING 
MINUTES 

 

 

  
  
  
 

 
 

  October 20, 2020 7:00 PM     
TELECONFERENCE 
       Call in Number: 
          (404) 902-5066 
          Call in Code: 
                326629 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 7:010 PM. 

  
B. ROLL CALL: Chairman Birendra Dhakal,  Vice Chairman Charles McFarland, Felicia 

Weinert, Amy Medford, P&D Director Shawanna Qawiy 
 

C. APPROVAL OF JULY 2020 MEETING MINUTES:  Chairman Birendra Dhakal called 
for a motion to approve the July 2020 minutes.  Amy Medford made a motion to approve, 
Felecia Weinert  seconded and the motion passed 4/0. 

  
D. NEW BUSINESS  

PUBLIC HEARING: To solicit input on proposed text amendments to amend the Clarkston 
Zoning Ordinance, Appendix A-Zoning of the City Code of Ordinances, Article VII-Zoning 
District Standards, Section 706 NC-1 Low Density Neighborhood Commercial District, 
Section 707 NC-2 Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial District and Section 709 I- 
Light Industrial, to require a conditional use permit to permit laundromats, and to repeal 
conflicting ordinances. 
 
Planning and Development Director Qawiy gave an overview of the proposed text 
amendment. 
 
Chairman Dhakal opened the public hearing to those who wished to speak in opposition of 
the text amendment request. There were no speakers.  
 
Chairman Dhakal opened the public hearing to those who wished to speak in favor of the text 
amendment request. There were no speakers.  
 
Chairman Dhakal closed the public hearing.  
 
 

 



 
Board members Birendra Dhakal, Amy Medford, Felecia Weinert and Charles McFarland 
discussed the text amendment collectively. Ms. Weinert discussed her hesitation related to 
conditional use permits and how the City should wait to review this and other text amendments 
during the zoning rewrite process.  Ms. Medford asked about the zoning rewrite request for 
proposals and how many RFPs had the City received to date. Director Qawiy explained that 
no RFPs had been submitted, due to RFP timeline being amended.   Director Qawiy stated that 
proposed executed contract date of January 2021 has not changed due to the RFP timeline 
amendment.   
 
Vice Chairman McFarland stated that he did not want to cause any proposed applicants any 
undue hardship.  Ms. Medford stated that with this amendment happening so close to the 
contract date of the zoning rewrite, the City should determine that it is more practical to wait 
until after January 2021 to review and provide recommendations on this text amendment. She 
also referenced that there are currently four (4) laundromat locations in the City of Clarkston. 
Director Qawiy confirmed those locations as Aqua Clean Coin Laundry and Dry Cleaners, 
4606-C E Ponce De Leon Ave, Clarkston Coin Laundry-Dry Cleaners, 3635 Church St Set B, 
Famous Dry Cleaning , 854 Montreal Rd Ste E, and  Brockett Plaza Coin Laundry 1295 
Brockett Rd #8. 

 
With no further discussions, Chairman Dhakal called for a motion.  Ms. Medford made the 
motion to recommend DENIAL of the request to amend the Clarkston Zoning Ordinance to 
allow laundromats as a conditional use within the NC-1 Low Density Neighborhood 
Commercial, NC-2 Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial and I- Light Industrial 
zoning districts and to incorporate this amendment to be reviewed during the full zoning 
rewrite.  Vice Chairman McFarland seconded and the motion passed 4/0. 
 
 

E. OTHER BUSINESS: None  
 

F.  ADJOURNMENT:  Chairman Dhakal called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Vice 
Chairman McFarland made the motion to adjourn, Amy Medford seconded the motion, and 
the motion passed 4/0.  Meeting adjourned at 7:43 PM. 

 



  
  ` 

 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CLARKSTON ZONING ORDINANCE, APPENDIX 

A OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, ARTICLE VII – ZONING DISTRICT 

STANDARDS – TO ALLOW SELF-SERVICE LAUNDRY, A/K/A LAUNDROMATS, AS 

A CONDITIONAL USE WITHIN THE NC-1, NC-2 AND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that Self-Service Laundry is not an 

appropriate use for the NC-1, NC-2 and I Districts at large but may be an appropriate use within 

such districts depending on factors specific to a given property; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to designate Self-Service Laundry as a conditional 

use within the NC-1, NC-2 and I Districts so that this use can be evaluated on a case-by-case basis 

based on site-specific factors.   

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Clarkston, Georgia, that the 

City’s Zoning Ordinance be amended as follows: 

SECTION ONE. 

NEW SUBSECTION (c)(2) OF SECTION 706 IS HEREBY ADOPTED, TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

“(2) Laundry, Self-Service” 

SECTION TWO. 

NEW SUBSECTION (c)(4) OF SECTION 707 IS HEREBY ADOPTED, TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

“(4) Laundry, Self-Service” 

SECTION THREE. 

NEW SUBSECTION (c)(4) OF SECTION 709 IS HEREBY ADOPTED, TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

“(4) Laundry, Self-Service” 

SECTION FOUR. 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City Council.  

Any provision of any ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 

SO ORDAINED, this ___ day of ____________, 2020. 

 

CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

 

                                                             ________________________________ 

 Awet Eyasu, Vice Mayor 



  
  ` 

 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_Stephen G. Quinn__________ 

Stephen Quinn, City Attorney 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: November 5, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Review and vote on Settlement Agreement with Railroad Outdoor LLC to allow for the Issuance of a Sign 
Permit to install One (1) Billboard just inside the West Side of I-285 along Church St.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to review/discuss and vote on Settlement Agreement with Railroad Outdoor LLC to allow for 
the issuance of a sign permit to install one billboard on the CSX RR Right-of-Way just West of I-285 off Church St.   
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
City received four (4) sign permit applications to allow the applicant to install four (4) billboard signs at 4 locations 
near I-285,  on September 10, 2020, and subsequently submitted a denial on September 14, 2020.  Applicant 
submitted a reply letter on September 16, 2020, appealing the City’s decision.  City subsequently provided the 
applicant the specific denial reasons in a letter dated September 22, 2020, as well as advising the applicant of the 
appeal date/time, October 6, 2002, beginning at 7 pm.   
 
Clarkston City Council discussed/reviewed and denied an appeal on October 6, 2020, by Railroad Outdoor LLC of the 
City of Clarkston City Manager’s denial of a sign permit application from Railroad Outdoor LLC to erect the four (4) 
billboard signs at four (4) locations near I-285.   City Council directed City Attorney Stephen Quinn to offer a 
settlement with the applicant.  The proposed settlement agreement is enclosed for Council consideration.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to review/discuss and vote to approve or deny settlement agreement.   

ITEM NO:  G6 

ACTION TYPE: 
SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting  

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages:  
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   


	E. NEW BUSINESS
	SUMMARY - DEBELL ST STORMWATER PROJECT - AWARD LOW BIDdoc.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Award DeBelle St/Atlanta Area School for the Deaf Stormwater Work bid to the lowest bidder – Leach Landscaping

	SUMMARY - CLEAN INDOOR ACT REVISION.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Extending the Sunset Clause of the Clean Indoor Air Act to Certain Grandfathered Businesses

	SUMMARY - RESTAURANT LATE NIGHT OPERATIONS .pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Late Night Restaurant Operations related to City Council Adoption of Ordinance 19-433, Late Night Alcohol Sales for Consumption on Premises

	SUMMARY - CARES ACT FUNDING INCREASE 50% of 1 MONTH'S ASSISTANCE to 100%doc.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Increase the Provision limiting the Temporary Rental, Mortgage, and Utilities’ Payment Assistance of 50% of One (1) Month’s Payment to 100% of the month’s payment.

	SUMMARY - CARES ACT FUNDING - RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Waive the Provision limiting the Temporary Rental Payment Assistance of 50% of One (1) Month’s Rent for up to Three (3) Months and Increase the Maximum Payment Assistance Allowed to $3,000.00 per Applicant for both Rent and Mortgage Assistance

	SUMMARY - CARES ACT FUNDING - COVID-19 TESTING.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Continued COVID-19 Testing.

	SUMMARY - CARES ACT FUNDING - CHILD CARE CENTERS.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Providing CARES Act (Coronavirus Relief) Funding for Child Care Centers in Clarkston

	Agenda  Council Meeting November 5  2020.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:

	Agenda  Council Meeting November 5  2020.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:

	Agenda  Council Meeting November 5  2020.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:

	NOV 5  2020 COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET - SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC  .pdf
	SUBJECT:   Review and vote on Settlement Agreement with Railroad Outdoor LLC to allow for the Issuance of a Sign Permit to install One (1) Billboard just inside the West Side of I-285 along Church St.

	DRAFT MINUTES  Council Meeting October 6 2020.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	G1)  Amend Chapter 13 of the City Code, Concerning Parks and Recreation, to Clarify Restrictions on Playing Baseball or Softball at Milam Park Laura Hopkins detailed the need to limit players to age twelve and under as the field is undersized and clos...
	Laura Hopkins made a motion to amend Chapter 13 of the City Code to clarify the language by adding For the protection of park visitors on the playground, dog park and swimming pool,” ahead of section (a) and to remove the phrase  “throws a baseball o...
	G2)  Appoint a Council member to the Vacant Seat on DDA.
	Awet detailed that at the December 3, 2019 Council Meeting, YT Bell was appointed to serve a two year term on the Clarkston Development Authority. On August 12, 2020, YT Bell qualified as a candidate for the Clarkston Mayor Special Election and vacat...
	Ahmed made a motion to nominate Laura Hopkins to the vacant DDA seat.  Debra Johnson   seconded the motion. Laura Hopkins gave thanks for the nomination.   A vote was called and the motion carried (3- Yes: Hassan, Johnson, Eyasu, 0- No, 2- Abstain: C...
	G3) Approve Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest
	Council discussion on planting a pollinator garden at Friendship Forest and the City Manager stated under the Council direction, that Public Works can purchase and install the plants.
	Laura Hopkins made a motion to direct the City Manager to go forward with the Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest. Awet Eyasu seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).
	G4)  Approve All park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park ma...
	Laura Hopkins stated the purpose and need to have park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecolog...
	Laura made a motion to direct the City Manager to use a consultant that is a park interpretive specialist to assess and cost the signage for parks going forward, whose specialty is in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecology...
	G5)  Amend ordinance for land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to increase undisturbed buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft
	Awet Eyasu stated purpose for the agenda item and that this will bring the City in alignment with DeKalb County’s buffer requirements.
	Laura Hopkins made a motion to amend Chapter 22 of the City Code concerning Stormwater Management, specifically article ii concerning stream buffer protection, to increase the required stream buffer from fifty to seventy-five feet. Debra Johnson   sec...
	G6)  Approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Clarkston
	Debra Johnson asked the Council to approve the resolution to declare October as domestic violence awareness month in the City of Clarkston. She would like for the City to host an annual event to bring awareness to this issue. Ms. Kilanko stated she lo...
	Debra Johnson made a motion to approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Clarkston.    Laura Hopkins seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0)
	G7)  Approve Alcohol Package Store License application Lulu’s Package
	City Manager stated this application is based on an ownership change for Lulus Package store at 3900 E Ponce de Leon Ave for an alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt/Liquor beverages for retail package. To date: all of the required inspections ...
	Laura Hopkins made a motion to approve Alcohol Package Store License application Lulu’s Package, at 3900 E Ponce de Leon Ave.    Jamie Carroll seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (4-Yes: Carroll, Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu, 0- N...
	G8)  Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan
	The City Manager detailed DeKalb County has requested that in preparation for the next update in 2022, the City of Clarkston had not submitted an Adopting Resolution for the plan. The resolution is necessary for the City to continue to remain eligible...
	Ahmed Hassan made a motion to adopt the Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County 2016 Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).
	G9)  Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3611 Church Street
	Mr. Gomez stated the City received a request from Railroad Outdoor LLC for sign permit to install a billboard on the property located at 3611 Church Street.  City staff reviewed the application and denied the application for the following reasons:
	1. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels
	2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards.
	This billboard would be within both of those sections of the code. The applicant subsequently requested an appeal of denial and that is what the Council has before them.
	Representative Adam Webb, Attorney, advised also on the meeting were Franklin Lemond of Webb, Klase and Lemond and Mike Fitzgerald/ Kelly Shaw-Owners of Railroad Outdoor LLC).  Mr. Webb requested that in order to streamline tonight's hearing, if the C...
	The Vice Mayor stated they could be presented combined, but the council would vote on each agenda item separately.
	Owner Mike Fitzgerald spoke on background of the company and the civic service that their billboards provide and possibility for the sign to be available for notices from the City. He felt the signs were in keeping with the City code.
	Adam Webb stated his view that the billboards are permitted in the city, meeting the requirements of the city’s billboard ordinance.  He referred the Council to his written appeal information but acknowledged that they provided appeal information late...
	Mr. Quinn advised the Council that the applicant had not addressed the fact that the proposed signs are too close to each other and to residences.
	Mr. Gomez advised the Council that the applicants never made any request to discuss the applications prior to submitting. Also the applicant has not addressed the restriction distance between billboards and the distance to residential properties. The ...
	Debra Johnson made a motion to affirm the city manager’s decision to deny the application based on the Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f) and  the Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000...
	G10) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.
	Awet Eyasu made a motion to affirm the City Manager and deny the application on Billboard signs they are 1. prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f) and 2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other bi...
	G11) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside (East) of I-285.
	The City Manager stated the third application is to install another billboard located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside (East) of I-285.    The application was denied based on:
	1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-
	41,3).
	2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).
	3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec
	15.5-63,b). The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible
	zoning designations.
	4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).
	5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).
	He requested the Council deny the appeal.
	The Vice Mayor gave the applicant an opportunity to present on the last two items.
	Adam Webb referred to his written submission and the reasons stated in support of items G9 and G10.  Mr. Webb also stated that the City had not zoned the railroad right of way and therefore the signs must be allowed.
	Stephen Quinn stated the City has an ordinance that states signs not allowed in railroad right-of-way.
	The Vice Mayor commented that these signs are bad for residents
	Awet Eyasu made a motion affirm the City Manager and deny the appeal for the reasons:  1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-
	41,3).
	2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).
	3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec
	15.5-63,b). The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations.
	4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).
	5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e
	Jamie Carroll seconded the motion. Council discussion: Jamie Carroll stated the denial should not be taken as personal, but that they are not permitted by the city code. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). (Carroll, Hassan Hopkins, Johnso...
	G12) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West) of I-285.
	City manager reported the application Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West) of I-285.    Application denied based on:
	1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-41,3).
	2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).
	3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 15.5-63,b).
	The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations.
	4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).
	5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).
	Adam Webb stated the same arguments as the previous on item.
	Awet Eyasu stated he strongly believe the sign would be harmful to residential properties and made a motion to deny the appeal based on  1 . Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-41,3).
	2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).
	3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 15.5-63,b).
	The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations.
	4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).
	5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).
	Laura Hopkins   seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0). (Carroll, Hassan Hopkins, Johnson, Eyasu)
	H. ADJOURNMENT:
	Laura Hopkins made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).




